
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Investment Board 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 22 MAY 2014 

Time: 1.45pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS - WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: MEMBERSHIP TO BE DETERMINED AT INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 14 MAY 2014  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries: Philippa Sewell 

tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch for Members will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
 

John Barradell 
Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. APPOINTMENT OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENT BOARD MEMBER TO THE SOCIAL 

INVESTMENT BOARD 

 To agree, in addition to the Chairman or his nominee, the appointment of a Financial 
Investment Board member to the Social Investment Board.  

 For Decision 
4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 5 
February 2014. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
5. MONTHLY INVESTMENT ANALYSIS REVIEW 

 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 14) 

 
6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

 MOTION - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act. 

 For Decision 
 
 
 
 

 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2014. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 18) 

 
10. BLACKROCK TRANSITION MANAGEMENT 
 Presentation by BlackRock. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 19 - 28) 

 



3 
 

11. TRANSITION REVIEW 

 Report of Aon Hewitt. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 29 - 36) 

 
12. INVESTMENTS PERFORMANCE MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 37 - 46) 

 
13. QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 
 Report of Aon Hewitt. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 47 - 98) 

 
14. PENSIONS INFRASTRUCTURE PLATFORM UPDATE 

 Report of Aon Hewitt. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 99 - 100) 

 
15. PRIVATE EQUITY PIPELINE AND MANAGER SELECTION 

 Report of Aon Hewitt. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 101 - 200) 

 
16. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

COMMITTEE 
 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



FINANCIAL INVESTMENT BOARD 
 

Wednesday, 5 February 2014  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Financial Investment Board held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Wednesday, 5 February 2014 at 1.45pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Robert Howard (Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers (Deputy Chairman) 
Henry Colthurst 
Simon Duckworth 
Tom Hoffman 
Clare James 
Andrew McMurtrie 
John Scott 
Ian Seaton 
Philip Woodhouse 
 
Officers: 
Chris Bilsland   - Chamberlain 
Paul Mathews   - Chamberlain’s Department 
Mark Bryans   - Chamberlain’s Department 
Kate Limna    - Chamberlain’s Department 
Philippa Sewell   - Town Clerk’s Department 
 
Emily McGuire   - Aon Hewitt 
Hans Holmen   - Aon Hewitt 

 
1. APOLOGIES  

Apologies were received from Roger Chadwick and Deputy Henry Pollard. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
Deputy Ken Ayers declared an interest in Allenbridge Epic in relation to agenda 
item 11, and Tom Hoffman and Philip Woodhouse declared an interest in 
Ruffer.  
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
RESOLVED: That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 9 December 2013 be agreed as an accurate record. 
 

4. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2014/15  
The Corporate Treasurer advised that the only change to the 2014/15 Treasury 
Strategy was the reduction in the maximum investment of loans with a maturity 
in excess of one year from £300million to £200million. In addition it was 
proposed to continue to lend monies for up to three years’ duration when 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



considered appropriate although at the present time we were restricting 
investments to three months. He further advised that in assessing 
creditworthiness, the City used a risk weighted scoring system. Members 
discussed the strategy, noting that potential deflation in the Eurozone was 
being monitored.  
 
The Corporate Treasurer advised that it was best practice for Members to 
receive Treasury Management training and if Members agreed a short training 
session could be arranged for the May or June meeting.  Members agreed that 
a short training session would be useful.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2014/15 by approved and submitted to Court for formal 
adoption.  
 

5. MONTHLY INVESTMENT ANALYSIS REVIEW  
The Board received the monthly review from December 2013, which detailed 
the list of current investments.  
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
The Chairman advised the Board that this was the Chamberlain and Corporate 
Treasurer’s last meeting, and Members expressed their thanks and best wishes 
for the future. 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

 
Item No.  

 
Paragraph(s) in Schedule 12A 

9 - 13                             3 
 
 

9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
RESOLVED: That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 
2013 be agreed as an accurate record. 
 

10. PRIVATE EQUITY PIPELINE AND SELECTION  
Aon Hewitt presented a report on the Private Equity pipeline and selections. 
 

11. PROVISION OF INVESTMENT ADVICE TO THE BOARD  
The Chamberlain reported on the provision of Investment Advice. 
 

12. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE COMMITTEE  

Page 2



There was one non-public question. 
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was no other business. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 3.21pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Philippa Sewell 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

M
o

n
th

ly
!I
n

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
A

n
a
ly

si
s!

R
e
v
ie

w

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

M
a
rc

h
!2

0
1

4

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

M
o

n
th

ly
!E

co
n

o
m

ic
!S

u
m

m
a
ry

!G
e
n
e
ra
l!
E
co
n
o
m
y

T
h

is
m

o
n

th
g
e

o
p

o
li
ti

ca
l

is
su

e
s

o
v
e

rc
a
st

m
a
rk

e
ts

a
s

te
n

si
o

n
s

b
e

tw
e

e
n

R
u

ss
ia

a
n

d
U

k
ra

in
e

e
sc

a
la

te
d

o
v
e

r
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

in
C

ri
m

e
a
.

T
h

e
v
o

te
sa

w
th

e
re

g
io

n
cu

t
ti

e
s

w
it

h
U

k
ra

in
e

in
fa

v
o

u
r

o
f

R
u

ss
ia

,
ra

is
in

g

co
n

ce
rn

s
a
m

o
n

g
st

W
e

st
e
rn

e
co

n
o

m
ie

s
o

f
a

p
o

te
n

ti
a
l
b

a
ck

la
sh

o
n

g
lo

b
a
l
fi

n
a
n

ci
a
l
a
n

d
co

m
m

o
d

it
y

m
a
rk

e
ts

.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
d

u
e

to
m

in
im

a
l
tr

a
d

e
ti

e
s

w
it

h
th

e
re

g
io

n
,

th
e

re
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

li
tt

le
d

ir
e

ct
im

p
a
ct

o
n

th
e

U
K

a
si

d
e

fr
o

m
th

e
e

v
id

e
n

ce
o

f
sa

fe
h

a
v
e

n
fl

o
w

s
g
iv

e
n

th
e

cu
rr

e
n

t
u

n
ce

rt
a
in

ti
e

s.

In
st

e
a
d

,
d

o
m

e
st

ic
a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
fo

cu
se

d
o

n
th

e
C

h
a
n

ce
ll
o

r’
s

B
u

d
g
e

t
w

h
ic

h
p

a
in

te
d

a
ro

sy
p

ic
tu

re
fo

r
th

e
U

K
e

co
n

o
m

ic
re

co
v
e

ry
.

T
h

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
sa

w
th

e
O

ff
ic

e
fo

r
B

u
d

g
e
t

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il
it

y
(O

B
R

)
p

u
sh

u
p

th
e
ir

G
D

P

fo
re

ca
st

s
fo

r
th

e
n

e
xt

fe
w

y
e

a
rs

,
w

it
h

2
.7

%
fo

r
2

0
1

4
a
n

d
2

.3
%

in
2

0
1

5
.

O
n

th
e

b
a
ck

o
f

u
p

w
a
rd

ly
re

v
is

e
d

fo
re

ca
st

s,
th

e
h

ig
h

li
g
h

t
o

f
th

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
ca

m
e

a
s

C
h

a
n

ce
ll
o

r
O

sb
o

rn
e

a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
d

d
ra

st
ic

re
fo

rm
s

to

p
e

n
si

o
n

s,
w

it
h

p
e

o
p

le
n

o
lo

n
g
e

r
b

e
in

g
re

q
u

ir
e

d
to

p
u

rc
h

a
se

a
n

a
n

n
u

it
y

u
p

o
n

re
ti

re
m

e
n

t.
In

it
s

p
la

ce
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

a
re

n
o

w
fr

e
e

to
w

it
h

d
ra

w
so

m
e

o
r

a
ll

o
f

th
e

ir
p

e
n

si
o

n
“p

o
t”

a
t

a
n

y
ti

m
e

.
G

iv
e

n
p

e
n

si
o

n
e

rs
a
re

k
n

o
w

n
to

h
a
v
e

a
h

ig
h

e
r

p
ro

p
e

n
si

ty
to

v
o

te
,
th

e
re

fo
rm

n
o

ta
b

ly
ca

m
e

a
cr

o
ss

a
s

a
p

o
li
ti

ca
lm

o
v
e

b
y

th
e

C
h

a
n

ce
ll
o

r
p

ri
o

r
to

th
e

2
0

1
5

G
e

n
e

ra
lE

le
ct

io
n

.

T
u

rn
in

g
th

e
a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
to

w
a
rd

s
m

o
n

th
ly

re
le

a
se

s,
M

a
rk

it
P

M
I
su

rv
e

y
s

sa
w

B
ri

ti
sh

M
a
n

u
fa

ct
u

ri
n

g
g
ro

w
fa

st
e

r
th

a
n

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

ti
ck

in
g

u
p

to
5

6
.9

fr
o

m
5

6
.6

in
Ja

n
u

a
ry

.
T
h

e
im

p
ro

v
e

d
fi

g
u

re
a
d

d
e

d
to

si
g
n

s
th

a
t

th
e

e
co

n
o

m
ic

re
co

v
e

ry
is

b
ro

a
d

e
n

in
g
;

fu
rt

h
e

r
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

b
y

th
e

n
e

w
s

th
a
t

m
a
n

u
fa

ct
u

ri
n

g
is

d
ri

v
in

g
th

e
sh

a
rp

e
st

jo
b

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

si
n

ce
m

id
2

0
1

1
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
in

co
n

tr
a
st

th
e

st
ro

n
g

p
a
ce

in
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
M

I
sl

ip
p

e
d

to

6
2

.6
in

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

fr
o

m
6

4
.6

in
Ja

n
u

a
ry

.
T
h

e
w

e
a
k
e

n
e

d
fi

g
u

re
w

a
s

a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
to

h
e

a
v
y

ra
in

a
n

d
fl

o
o

d
s

w
h

ic
h

a
ff

e
ct

e
d

h
o

u
se
"b

u
il
d

in
g

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
m

o
n

th
.
La

st
ly

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
M

I,
th

e
k
e

y
co

n
tr

ib
u

to
r

to
U

K
G

D
P

,
a
g
a
in

fe
ll

a
n

o
tc

h
in

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

to
5

8
.2

fr
o

m
5

8
.3

Ja
n

u
a
ry

.
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

a
t

it
s

lo
w

e
st

le
v
e

l
si

n
ce

Ju
n

e
,

th
e

h
e

a
d

li
n

e
ra

te
re

m
a
in

e
d

fi
rm

ly
in

‘e
xp

a
n

si
o

n
te

rr
it

o
ry

’
th

u
s

ra
is

in
g

n
o

im
m

in
e

n
t

ca
u

se
fo

r
co

n
ce

rn
.

O
v
e

ra
ll

th
e

co
m

p
o

si
te

in
d

e
x

o
f

a
ll

th
re

e
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
e

d
g
e

d
d

o
w

n
to

5
8

.6
in

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

fr
o

m
Ja

n
u

a
ry

’s
5

9
.1

.

F
u

rt
h

e
r

co
m

p
o

u
n

d
in

g
so

u
r

n
e

w
s,

B
ri

ta
in

’s
B

a
la

n
ce

o
f

T
ra

d
e

in
g
o

o
d

s
d

e
fi

ci
t

u
n

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

ly
w

id
e

n
e

d
in

Ja
n

u
a
ry

to
£

9
.7

9
b

n
fr

o
m

£
7

.6
6

b
n

in
D

e
ce

m
b

e
r,

a
s

e
xp

o
rt

s
fe

ll
to

th
e

ir
lo

w
e

st
le

v
e

l
in

m
o

re
th

a
n

a
y
e

a
r

a
n

d
a

h
a
lf

.
T
h

e
d

a
ta

re
le

a
se

re
a
ff

ir
m

e
d

th
e

n
e

e
d

fo
r

th
e

U
K

to
b

re
a
k

a
w

a
y

fr
o

m
a

co
n

su
m

e
r

le
d

re
co

v
e

ry
,

fu
rt

h
e

r
e

m
p

h
a
si

se
d

b
y

th
e

C
h

a
n

ce
ll
o

r’
s

a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
m

e
n

t
in

th
e

B
u

d
g
e

t
th

a
t

le
n

d
in

g
to

U
K

e
xp

o
rt

e
rs

w
o

u
ld

b
e

in
cr

e
a
se

d
to

£
3

b
n

.
O

n
a

p
o

si
ti

v
e

n
o

te
d

o
m

e
st

ic
in

fl
a
ti

o
n

,
a
s

m
e

a
su

re
d

b
y

C
P

I,
co

n
ti

n
u

e
d

it
s

d
o

w
n

w
a
rd

tr
a
je

ct
o

ry
w

it
h

p
ri

ce
s

ri
si

n
g

1
.7

%
o

n
th

e
y
e

a
r

in
F
e

b
ru

a
ry

.
A

cc
o

rd
in

g
to

th
e

O
N

S
,

th
e

n
e

w
fo

u
r

y
e

a
r

lo
w

m
a
rk

s
th

e
n

a
rr

o
w

e
st

g
a
p

b
e

tw
e

e
n

in
fl

a
ti

o
n

a
n

d
a
v
e

ra
g
e

w
a
g
e

g
ro

w
th

si
n

ce
A

p
ri

l
2

0
1

0
.

U
K

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
re

m
a
in

e
d

st
a
b

le
a
t

7
.2

%
in

th
e

th
re

e
m

o
n

th
s

to
Ja

n
u

a
ry

,
b

u
t

th
o

se
cl

a
im

in
g

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
fe

ll
3

4
,6

0
0

,
th

is
co

m
p

a
re

d
to

fo
re

ca
st

s
o

f
2

5
,0

0
0

d
ro

p
.

T
h

e
re

a
d

in
g
s

u
n

d
e

rp
in

th
e

v
ie

w
th

a
t

th
e

la
b

o
u

r
m

a
rk

e
t

is
in

re
co

v
e

ry
,

fu
rt

h
e

r
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

th
e

B
o

E
fo

rw
a
rd

g
u

id
a
n

ce
p

o
li
cy

to

lo
o

k
a
t

a
b

ro
a
d

e
r

ra
n

g
e

o
f

m
e

a
su

re
s

o
f

sl
a
ck

in
th

e
e

co
n

o
m

y
.

O
n

th
e

w
h

o
le

,
it

w
a
s

co
n

fi
rm

e
d

b
y

th
e

O
N

S
th

a
t

th
e

U
K

e
co

n
o

m
y

g
re

w
b

y
0

.7
%

q
/q

in
Q

4
,

u
n

ch
a
n

g
e

d
fr

o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s

e
st

im
a
te

s.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r
th

e
e

st
im

a
te

fo
r

o
v
e

ra
ll

g
ro

w
th

in
2

0
1

3
w

a
s

cu
t

fu
rt

h
e

r
to

1
.7

%
fr

o
m

a
d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

ly
re

v
is

e
d

1
.8

%
.
B

ri
ti

sh
co

n
su

m
e

r
se

n
ti

m
e

n
t

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
to

p
la

y
a

v
it

a
lr

o
le

w
it

h
th

e
G

fk
h

e
a
d

li
n

e
co

n
su

m
e

r
co

n
fi

d
e

n
ce

in
d

e
x

ri
si

n
g

to
"5

,
it

s
h

ig
h

e
st

re
a
d

in
g

si
n

ce
A

u
g
u

st
2

0
0

7
.

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

B
a
n
k
!R
a
te

M
a
r"
1
4

Ju
n
"1
4

S
e
p
"1
4

D
e
c"
1
4

M
a
r"
1
5

C
a
p

it
a
!A

ss
e
t!

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.5

0
%

0
.5

0
%

0
.5

0
%

0
.5

0
%

0
.5

0
%

U
B

S
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%
0

.7
5

%

C
a
p

it
a
l!
E
co

n
o

m
ic

s
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%
0

.5
0

%

!F
o
re
ca
st

!H
o
u
si
n
g
!M

a
rk
e
t!

C
a
p

it
a

A
ss

e
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

k
e

p
t

it
s

in
te

re
st

ra
te

fo
re

ca
st

u
n

ch
a
n

g
e

d
fr

o
m

it
s

u
p

d
a
te

d
fo

re
ca

st
s

fo
ll
o

w
in

g
th

e

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

R
e

p
o

rt
.

T
h

e
fi

rs
t

B
a
n

k
R

a
te

in
cr

e
a
se

is
se

t
to

o
cc

u
r

in
Q

4
2

0
1

5
w

it
h

B
a
n

k
R

a
te

re
m

a
in

in
g

a
t

0
.7

5
%

fo
r

th
e

fi
rs

t
tw

o
q

u
a
rt

e
rs

.
M

e
a
n

w
h

il
e

C
a
p

it
a
l
E
co

n
o

m
ic

s
e

xp
e

ct
s

n
o

B
a
n

k
R

a
te

h
ik

e

u
n

ti
lt

h
e

fi
n

a
l
q

u
a
rt

e
r

o
f

2
0

1
5

w
h

il
st

U
B

S
e

xp
e

ct
th

e
B

a
n

k
R

a
te

to
b

e
k
e

p
t

o
n

h
o

ld
u

n
ti

l
Q

2
2

0
1

5
.

C
o

n
ce

rn
s

p
e

rs
is

t
o

v
e

r
th

e
st

re
n

g
th

o
f

m
o

m
e

n
tu

m
b

e
in

g
g
a
th

e
re

d
in

th
e

h
o

u
si

n
g

m
a
rk

e
t.

B
ri

ti
sh

h
o

u
se

p
ri

ce
s

in
th

e
th

re
e

m
o

n
th

s
to

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

ro
se

b
y

2
.4

%
,
co

m
p

a
re

d
w

it
h

a
1

.1
%

ri
se

in
Ja

n
u

a
ry

,
su

rp
a
ss

in
g

fo
re

ca
st

s
o

f
a

0
.7

%
u

p
tu

rn
,

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

to
H

a
li
fa

x.
T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
m

o
rt

g
a
g
e

s
g
ra

n
te

d
to

h
o

m
e

b
u

y
e

rs
fe

ll
in

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

to
4

7
,5

5
0

co
m

p
a
re

d
w

it
h

a
d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

ly
re

v
is

e
d

fi
g
u

re
o

f
4

9
,3

4
1

in
Ja

n
u

a
ry

,
a
cc

o
rd

in
g

to

g
y

O
n

th
e

w
h

o
le

,
it

w
a
s

co
n

fi
rm

e
d

b
y

th
e

O
N

S
th

a
t

th
e

U
K

e
co

n
o

m
y

g
re

w
b

y
0

.7
%

q
/q

in
Q

4
,

u
n

ch
a
n

g
e

d
fr

o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s

e
st

im
a
te

s.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r
th

e
e

st
im

a
te

fo
r

o
v
e

ra
ll

g
ro

w
th

in
2

0
1

3
w

a
s

cu
t

fu
rt

h
e

r
to

1
.7

%
fr

o
m

a
d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

ly
re

v
is

e
d

1
.8

%
.
B

ri
ti

sh
co

n
su

m
e

r
se

n
ti

m
e

n
t

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
to

p
la

y
a

v
it

a
lr

o
le

w
it

h
th

e
G

fk
h

e
a
d

li
n

e
co

n
su

m
e

r
co

n
fi

d
e

n
ce

in
d

e
x

ri
si

n
g

to
"5

,
it

s
h

ig
h

e
st

re
a
d

in
g

si
n

ce
A

u
g
u

st
2

0
0

7
.

In
th

e
U

S
,

N
o

n
"F

a
rm

P
a
y
ro

ll
s

d
a
ta

ro
se

su
rp

ri
si

n
g
ly

to
1

7
5

,0
0

0
in

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

co
m

p
a
re

d
to

1
1

3
,0

0
0

in
Ja

n
u

a
ry

.
T
h

e
st

ro
n

g
e

r
fi

g
u

re
e

a
se

d
fe

a
rs

o
f

a
n

a
b

ru
p

t
sl

o
w

d
o

w
n

in
e

co
n

o
m

ic
g
ro

w
th

w
h

ic
h

w
a
s

a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d

to
u

n
se

a
so

n
a
b

ly
co

ld
w

e
a
th

e
r

d
is

ru
p

ti
n

g
e

co
n

o
m

ic
a
ct

iv
it

y
.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
th

e
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t
ra

te
ro

se
to

6
.7

%
in

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

fr
o

m
a

fi
v
e
"y

e
a
r

lo
w

o
f

6
.6

%
.
A

n
a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l
su

rp
ri

se
ca

m
e

th
is

m
o

n
th

a
s

F
e

d
C

h
a
ir

Ja
n

e
t

Y
e

ll
e

n
co

m
m

e
n

te
d

th
a
t

th
e

F
O

M
C

co
u

ld
ra

is
e

ra
te

s
b

y
sp

ri
n

g
2

0
1

5
,

m
u

ch
e

a
rl

ie
r

th
a
n

m
a
rk

e
ts

h
a
d

a
n

ti
ci

p
a
te

d
.

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
th

e
a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
m

e
n

t
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
b

o
n

d
m

a
rk

e
ts

sa
w

a
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t
se

ll
"o

ff
,

w
it

h
g
il
t

m
a
rk

e
t

se
e

in
g

1
0

y
e

a
r

y
ie

ld
s

ri
se

b
y

7
b

p
s.

E
ls

e
w

h
e

re
,

in
th

e
E
u

ro
zo

n
e

,
in

fl
a
ti

o
n

fe
ll

to
sl

ig
h

tl
y

lo
w

e
r

th
a
n

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

d
u

ri
n

g
F
e

b
ru

a
ry

,
w

it
h

p
ri

ce
s

u
p

ju
st

0
.7

%
.

T
h

e
fi

g
u

re
u

n
d

e
rl

in
e

d
d

e
fl

a
ti

o
n

co
n

ce
rn

s
w

it
h

in
th

e
e

co
n

o
m

y
b

lo
c.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
n

e
w

s
o

f

st
ro

n
g
e

r
th

a
n

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

g
ro

w
th

fo
r

th
e

fi
n

a
l
q

u
a
rt

e
r

o
f

2
0

1
3

d
a
m

p
e

n
e

d
so

m
e

e
n

th
u

si
a
sm

th
a
t

th
e

E
C

B
w

o
u

ld
n

e
e

d
to

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

fr
e
sh

m
o

n
e

ta
ry

p
o

li
cy

su
p

p
o

rt
in

th
e

n
e

a
r

te
rm

.
F
u

rt
h

e
r

a
d

d
in

g
to

o
p

ti
m

is
ti

c

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 6



C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

rr
e
n

t!
In

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
L

C
u

rr
e
n

t!
In

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
Li

st

B
o
rr
o
w
e
r

P
ri
n
ci
p
a
l!
(£
)

In
te
re
st
!R
a
te

S
ta
rt
!D
a
te

M
a
tu
ri
ty
!D
a
te

Lo
w
e
st
!L
o
n
g
!

T
e
rm

!R
a
ti
n
g

H
is
to
ri
c!
R
is
k
!

o
f!
D
e
fa
u
lt

1
M

M
F
!I
g
n

is
2

7
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
3

%
M

M
F

A
A

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
E
M

M
F
!I
G

N
IS
!S

h
o

rt
!D

u
ra

ti
o

n
!C

a
sh
!F

u
n

d
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.7

8
%

E
M

M
F

A
A

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
M

M
F
!F

e
d

e
ra

te
d
!I
n

v
e
st

o
rs
!(

U
K

)
1

1
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
0

%
M

M
F

A
A

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
E
M

M
F
!P

ri
m

e
!R

a
te
!C

a
sh
!P

lu
s!

F
u

n
d

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.6
5

%
E
M

M
F

A
A

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
M

M
F
!I
n

v
e
sc

o
9

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.3
3

%
M

M
F

A
A

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
M

M
F
!C

C
LA

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.3

3
%

M
M

F
A

A
A

0
.0

0
0

%

1
E
M

M
F
!P

a
y
d

e
n
!S

te
rl

in
g
!R

e
se

rv
e
!F

u
n

d
5

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.8
5

%
E
M

M
F

A
A

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
7

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.6

1
%

0
2

/0
1

/2
0

1
4

0
2

/0
4

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
0

0
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

2
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
0

6
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
0

7
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
2

%

1
Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
0

%
0

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
0

8
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
B

B
B

+
0

.0
0

5
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
0

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
0

9
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
2

%

1
B

a
rc

la
y
s!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
4

,8
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

2
%

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

1
4

1
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
0

2
%

1
B

a
rc

la
y
s!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
8

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

5
%

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

1
4

1
1

/0
4

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
0

3
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,8

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
8

%
1

3
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
1

4
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
3

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
8

%
1

6
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
1

6
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
4

%

1
Le

e
d

s!
B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

5
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
1

%
2

1
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
2

2
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

0
5

%

1
S
k
ip

to
n
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

2
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.9

4
%

1
9

/0
4

/2
0

1
3

2
2

/0
4

/2
0

1
4

B
B

+
0

.0
5

3
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

8
%

2
1

/0
1

/2
0

1
4

2
3

/0
4

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
0

6
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
B

u
il
d

in
g

S
o

ci
e
ty

6
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
8

%
2

1
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
2

4
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
6

%
1

N
a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

6
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
8

%
2

1
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
2

4
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
6

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

3
,7

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
3

0
/0

1
/2

0
1

4
3

0
/0

4
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

0
7

%

1
B

a
rc

la
y
s!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
4

,6
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

5
%

0
3

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

0
6

/0
5

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
0

9
%

1
C

o
v
e
n

tr
y
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

2
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
5

%
0

6
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
0

6
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

0
9

%

1
B

a
rc

la
y
s!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
3

,8
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

5
%

0
5

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

0
7

/0
5

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
0

9
%

1
C

o
v
e
n

tr
y
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

2
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
5

%
0

7
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
0

8
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

0
9

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

3
,7

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
1

0
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
1

2
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
0

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l!
A

u
st

ra
li
a
!B

a
n

k
!L

td
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

1
%

1
0

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

1
3

/0
5

/2
0

1
4

A
A
"

0
.0

0
2

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
1

7
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
1

9
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
2

%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
1

0
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.6
0

%
1

9
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
1

9
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
2

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

7
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
8

%
1

7
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
2

0
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
2

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
1

8
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
2

1
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
2

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

1
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
2

0
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
2

2
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
3

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,8

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
2

4
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
2

7
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
4

%

1
C

o
v
e
n

tr
y
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
6

%
2

7
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
2

8
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

1
4

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
2

8
/0

2
/2

0
1

4
3

0
/0

5
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
5

%

1
Le

e
d

s!
B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

6
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
2

%
0

3
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
0

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

1
6

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

1
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

8
%

0
3

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

0
4

/0
6

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
1

6
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
0

4
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
0

5
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

1
6

%

1
C

o
v
e
n

tr
y
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
6

%
1

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
1

0
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

1
7

%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.6

0
%

1
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
1

/0
6

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
1

7
%

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 7



C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

rr
e
n

t!
In

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
L

C
u

rr
e
n

t!
In

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
Li

st

B
o
rr
o
w
e
r

P
ri
n
ci
p
a
l!
(£
)

In
te
re
st
!R
a
te

S
ta
rt
!D
a
te

M
a
tu
ri
ty
!D
a
te

Lo
w
e
st
!L
o
n
g
!

T
e
rm

!R
a
ti
n
g

H
is
to
ri
c!
R
is
k
!

o
f!
D
e
fa
u
lt

1
Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
0

%
1

2
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
1

2
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
B

B
B

+
0

.0
4

2
%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.6

0
%

1
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
7

/0
6

/2
0

1
4

A
0

.0
1

9
%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l!
A

u
st

ra
li
a
!B

a
n

k
!L

td
7

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.4

1
%

1
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
7

/0
6

/2
0

1
4

A
A
"

0
.0

0
4

%

1
Le

e
d

s!
B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

6
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
1

%
1

9
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
2

0
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

2
0

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

2
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
6

%
2

7
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
2

4
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

2
1

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
2

5
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
2

5
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

2
1

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

5
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
2

6
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
2

6
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

2
1

%

1
B

a
rc

la
y
s!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
1

5
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.5
2

%
2

6
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
2

7
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

2
1

%

1
C

o
v
e
n

tr
y
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

5
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
6

%
2

7
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
3

0
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A
"

0
.0

2
2

%

1
N

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty

7
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.4
7

%
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
3

0
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
A

0
.0

2
2

%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.8
0

%
2

1
/1

2
/2

0
1

1
2

2
/1

2
/2

0
1

4
B

B
B

+
0

.1
5

4
%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

2
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.8
0

%
2

1
/1

2
/2

0
1

1
2

2
/1

2
/2

0
1

4
B

B
B

+
0

.1
5

4
%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.8
0

%
2

1
/1

2
/2

0
1

1
2

2
/1

2
/2

0
1

4
B

B
B

+
0

.1
5

4
%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.9
5

%
0

3
/0

1
/2

0
1

2
0

5
/0

1
/2

0
1

5
B

B
B

+
0

.1
6

3
%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.9
5

%
0

3
/0

1
/2

0
1

2
0

5
/0

1
/2

0
1

5
B

B
B

+
0

.1
6

3
%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.9
5

%
0

3
/0

1
/2

0
1

2
0

5
/0

1
/2

0
1

5
B

B
B

+
0

.1
6

3
%

1
T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
1

2
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
3

.9
5

%
0

3
/0

1
/2

0
1

2
0

5
/0

1
/2

0
1

5
B

B
B

+
0

.1
6

3
%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.9

5
%

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

A
0

.0
8

8
%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s
B

a
n

k
P

lc
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

5
%

2
8

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

3
0

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

A
0

0
8

8
%

1
Ll

o
y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
2

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.9

5
%

2
8

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

3
0

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

A
0

.0
8

8
%

1
B

a
rc

la
y
s!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
1

0
,8

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.9
2

%
2

6
/0

3
/2

0
1

4
1

0
/0

4
/2

0
1

5
A

0
.0

9
3

%

1
T
o
ta
l!
In
v
e
st
m
e
n
ts

£
4
5
0
,2
0
0
,0
0
0

1
.1
2
%

0
.0

3
8

%

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 8



C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

P
o

rt
fo

li
o
!C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n
!b

y
!C

a
p

it
a
!A

ss
e
t!

S
e
rv

ic
e
s'
!S

u
g
g
e
st

e
d
!L

e
n

d
in

g
!C

ri
te

ri
a

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
s!
w
e
ig
h
te
d
!a
v
e
ra
g
e
!r
is
k
!n
u
m
b
e
r!
=

4
.1
9

W
A

R
o

R
=

W
e
ig

h
te

d
A

v
e
ra

g
e

R
a
te

o
f

R
e
tu

rn

Y
el

lo
w

Y
el

lo
w

 C
al

ls
P

in
k1

P
in

k1
 C

al
ls

P
in

k2
P

in
k2

 C
al

ls
P

u
rp

le
P

u
rp

le
 C

al
ls

B
lu

e

B
lu

e 
C

al
ls

O
ra

n
g

e
O

ra
n

g
e 

C
al

ls
R

ed
R

ed
 C

al
ls

G
re

en
G

re
en

 C
al

ls
N

o
 C

o
lo

u
r

N
C

 C
al

ls

0
%

10
%

2
0

%

3
0

%

4
0

%

5
0

%

6
0

%

U
n

d
e

r 
1 

M
o

n
th

1-
3

 M
o

n
th

s
3

-6
 M

o
n

th
s

6
-9

 M
o

n
th

s
9

-1
2

 M
o

n
th

s
12

 M
o

n
th

s 
+

C
ap

it
a 

A
ss

e
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
it

y
 O

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
ti

o
n

 

Y
P

i1
P

i2
P

B
O

R
G

N
/
C

1
1
.
2
5

1
.
5

2
3

4
5

6
7

U
p
!t

o
!5

y
rs

U
p
!t

o
!5

y
rs

U
p
!t

o
!5

y
rs

U
p
!t

o
!2

y
rs

U
p
!t

o
!1

y
r

U
p
!t

o
!1

y
r

U
p
!t

o
!6

m
th

s
U

p
!t

o
!1

0
0
d

a
y
s

N
o
!C

o
lo

u
r

W
A

R
o

R
!=
!W

e
ig

h
te

d
!A

v
e
ra

g
e
!R

a
te
!o

f!
R

e
tu

rn

W
A

M
!=
!W

e
ig

h
te

d
!A

v
e
ra

g
e
!T

im
e
!t

o
!M

a
tu

ri
ty

%
!o
f!
C
o
lo
u
r

A
m
o
u
n
t!
o
f

%
!o
f!
C
a
ll

E
x
cl
u
d
in
g
!C
a
ll
s/
M
M
F
s/
E
M
M
F
s

%
!o
f!
P
o
rt
fo
li
o

A
m
o
u
n
t

in
!C
a
ll
s

C
o
lo
u
r!
in
!C
a
ll
s

in
!P
o
rt
fo
li
o

W
A
R
o
R

W
A
M

W
A
M
!a
t!
E
x
e
cu
ti
o
n

W
A
M

W
A
M
!a
t!
E
x
e
cu
ti
o
n

Y
e
ll
o
w

1
1

.0
0

%
£

4
9

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

£
4

9
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
1

1
.0

0
%

0
.4

0
%

0
0

0
0

P
in
k
1

2
.2

2
%

£
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
£

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
.2

2
%

0
.7

2
%

0
0

0
0

P
in
k
2

1
2

.2
2

%
£

5
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

£
5

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
.2

2
%

0
.8

5
%

0
9

1
0

0

P
u
rp
le

0
.0

0
%

£
0

0
.0

0
%

£
0

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
0

0
0

B
lu
e

2
4

.1
9

%
£

1
0

8
,9

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
£

0
0

.0
0

%
2

.8
7

%
2

2
2

7
9

6
2

2
2

7
9

6

O
ra
n
g
e

0
.0

0
%

£
0

0
.0

0
%

£
0

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
0

0
0

R
e
d

2
.4

4
%

£
1

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
£

0
0

.0
0

%
0

.4
1

%
6

5
9

2
6

5
9

2

G
re
e
n

3
3

.1
4

%
£

1
4

9
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
£

0
0

.0
0

%
0

.5
1

%
7

2
1

1
3

7
2

1
1

3

N
o
!C
o
lo
u
r

1
4

.7
9

%
£

6
6

,6
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
%

£
0

0
.0

0
%

0
.5

8
%

4
7

1
7

5
4

7
1

7
5

1
0
0
.0
0
%

£
4
5
0
,2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
5
.4
3
%

£
1
1
4
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

2
5
.4
3
%

1
.1
2
%

8
6

2
6
9

1
3
3

3
4
6

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 9



C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

R
e
la

ti
v
e
!I
n

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
R

is
k
!a

n
d
!R

a
ti

n
g
!E

xp
o

su
re

0
.3

0
%

0
.8

0
%

1
.3

0
%

1
.8

0
%

2
.3

0
%

R
e

la
ti

ve
!In

v
e
st

m
e
n

t!
R

is
k
!V

s.
!R

a
ti

n
g
!C

a
te

g
o

ri
e
s

A
A
"

£
1

1
,0

0
0

,

0
0

0
!3

%
A

A
A
!

£
1

1
4

,5
0

0
,0

0

0
!2

5
%

A
!

£
1

8
3

,8
0

0
,0

0

0
!4

1
%

A
"

£
3

8
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
!

9
%

B
B

+
!

£
2

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
!

4
%

B
B

B
+
!

£
8

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
!

1
8

%

R
a
ti
n
g
!E
x
p
o
su
re

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

R
a
ti
n
g
/Y
e
a
rs

<
1
!y
e
a
r

1
!t
o
!2
!y
rs

2
!t
o
!3
!y
rs

3
!t
o
!4
!y
rs

4
!t
o
!5
!y
rs

A
A

0
.0

1
7

%
0

.0
3

8
%

0
.1

4
5

%
0

.2
8

4
%

0
.4

0
1

%

A
0

.0
8

9
%

0
.2

4
9

%
0

.4
3

8
%

0
.6

1
6

%
0

.8
3

1
%

B
B

B
0

.2
1

2
%

0
.6

1
3

%
1

.0
7

0
%

1
.6

1
0

%
2

.1
2

6
%

C
o

u
n

ci
l

0
.0

3
7

%
0

.0
9

3
%

0
.0

0
0

%
0

.0
0

0
%

0
.0

0
0

%

H
is

to
ri
c
 R

is
k
 o

f 
D

e
fa

u
lt

"0
.2

0
%

<
1
!y

e
a
r

1
!t

o
!2
!y

rs
2
!t

o
!3
!y

rs
3
!t

o
!4
!y

rs
4
!t

o
!5
!y

rs

A
A

A
B

B
B

C
o

u
n

ci
l

0
!4

1
%

H
is
to
ri
c!
R
is
k
!o
f!
D
e
fa
u
lt

T
h

is
is

a
p

ro
xy

fo
r

th
e

a
v
e

ra
g
e

%
ri

sk
fo

r
e

a
ch

in
v
e

st
m

e
n

t
b

a
se

d
o

n
o

v
e

r
3

0

y
e

a
rs

o
f

d
a
ta

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

F
it

ch
,

M
o

o
d

y
's

a
n

d
S
&

P
.

It
si

m
p

ly
p

ro
v
id

e
s

a

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
p

o
ss

ib
il
it

y
o

f
a
v
e

ra
g
e

d
e

fa
u

lt
a
g
a
in

st
th

e
h

is
to

ri
ca

l
d

e
fa

u
lt

ra
te

s,
a
d

ju
st

e
d

fo
r

th
e

ti
m

e
p

e
ri

o
d

w
it

h
in

e
a
ch

y
e
a
r

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

to
th

e
m

a
tu

ri
ty

o
f

th
e

in
v
e
st

m
e
n

t.

C
h
a
rt
R
e
la
ti
v
e
R
is
k

T
h

is
is

th
e

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
ri

sk
w

e
ig

h
ti

n
g
s

co
m

p
a
re

d
to

th
e

a
v
e

ra
g
e

%
ri

sk
o

f

d
e
fa

u
lt

fo
r

“A
A

”,
“A

”
a
n

d
“B

B
B

”
ra

te
d

in
v
e
st

m
e
n

ts

R
a
ti
n
g
E
x
p
o
su
re
s

T
h

is
p

ie
ch

a
rt

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
cl

e
a
r

v
ie

w
o

f
y
o

u
r

in
v
e

st
m

e
n

t
e

xp
o

su
re

s
to

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r

ra
ti

n
g
s

.

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 10



D
a
te

U
p
d
a
te
!

N
u
m
b
e
r

In
st
it
u
ti
o
n

C
o
u
n
tr
y

R
a
ti
n
g
!A
ct
io
n

0
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
4

S
a
u

d
i!
A

ra
b

ia
!

S
a
u

d
i!
A

ra
b

ia
S
o

v
e
re

ig
n
!r

a
ti

n
g
!u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'A

A
'!f

ro
m
!'A

A
"'

.!
O

u
tl

o
o

k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!S

o
v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!P

o
si

ti
v
e
.

2
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
0

U
.S

.A
U

.S
.A

S
o

v
e
re

ig
n
!r

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

A
A

'.
!R

a
ti

n
g
!r

e
m

o
v
e
d
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!W

a
tc

h
!a

n
d
!p

la
ce

d
!o

n
!S

ta
b

le
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
2

Ll
o

y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
in

g
!G

ro
u

p
!p

lc
U

K
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

',
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!f

ro
m
!S

ta
b

le
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'F

1
'.
!

V
ia

b
il
it

y
!R

a
ti

n
g
!u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'a
"'
!f

ro
m
!'b

b
b

+
'.
!S

u
p

p
o

rt
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'1

'.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
2

Ll
o

y
d

s!
B

a
n

k
!P

lc
U

K
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

',
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!f

ro
m
!S

ta
b

le
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'F

1
'.
!

V
ia

b
il
it

y
!R

a
ti

n
g
!u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'a
"'
!f

ro
m
!'b

b
b

+
'.
!S

u
p

p
o

rt
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'1

'.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
2

B
a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
U

K
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

',
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!f

ro
m
!S

ta
b

le
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'F

1
'.
!N

e
w
!

V
ia

b
il
it

y
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

t!
'a
"'

.!
S
u

p
p

o
rt
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'1

'.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
3

S
o

ci
e
te
!G

e
n

e
ra

le
!

F
ra

n
ce
!

A
ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
3

D
e
u

ts
ch

e
!B

a
n

k
!A

G
G

e
rm

a
n

y
A

ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
3

La
n

d
e
sb

a
n

k
!B

a
d

e
n
!W

u
tt

e
rm

b
e
rg
!

G
e
rm

a
n

y
!

A
ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7/

0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
3

M
B

N
A

 E
u

ro
p

e
 B

a
n

k 
U

K
A

ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

M
o
n
th
ly
!C
re
d
it
!R
a
ti
n
g
!C
h
a
n
g
e
s

F
IT
C
H

C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

g

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
3

T
h

e
 R

o
y

a
l 

B
an

k 
o

f 
S

co
tl

a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
 P

lc
U

K
A

ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
3

T
h

e
 R

o
y

a
l 

B
a

n
k 

o
f 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

 P
lc

U
K

A
ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
3

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
W

e
st

m
in

st
e

r 
B

a
n

k 
P

lc
 

U
K

A
ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
3

B
a

n
k 

o
f 

A
m

e
ri

ca
, N

.A
.

U
.S

.A
A

ll
!r

a
ti

n
g
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

n
d
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!a

s!
a
!r

e
su

lt
!o

f!
im

p
li
e
d
!l
e
v
e
ls
!o

f!
so

v
e
re

ig
n
!s

u
p

p
o

rt
!b

u
il
t!

in
to
!t

h
e
!

ra
ti

n
g
s.

2
7

/0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
3

C
it

ib
a

n
k 

N
.A

.
U

.S
.A

 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
!R

a
ti

n
g
!u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'a

'!f
ro

m
!'a
"'

.!
A

ll
!o

th
e
r!

ra
ti

n
g
s!

w
e
re
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d

.

2
8

/0
3

/2
0

14
12

6
4

U
ls

te
r 

B
a

n
k 

Lt
d

U
K

Lo
n

g
 T

e
rm

 R
a

ti
n

g
 a

ff
ir

m
e

d
 a

t 
'A

-'
, O

u
tl

o
o

k 
ch

a
n

g
e

d
 t

o
 N

e
g

a
ti

ve
 f

ro
m

 S
ta

b
le

. S
h

o
rt

 T
e

rm
 R

a
ti

n
g

 a
ff

ir
m

e
d

 a
t 

'F
1'

.S
u

p
p

o
rt

 R
a

ti
n

g
 a

ff
ir

m
e

d
 a

t 
'1

'. 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 11



 

D
a
te

U
p
d
a
te
!

N
u
m
b
e
r

In
st
it
u
ti
o
n

C
o
u
n
tr
y

R
a
ti
n
g
!A
ct
io
n

0
3

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
0

G
e
rm

a
n

y
!

G
e
rm

a
n

y
O

u
tl

o
o

k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!S

o
v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
S
o

v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!w

a
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

t!
'A

a
a
'.
!

0
3

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
1

Lu
xe

m
b

o
u

rg
Lu

xe
m

b
o

u
rg

O
u

tl
o

o
k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!S

o
v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
S
o

v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!w

a
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

t!
'A

a
a
'.
!

0
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
2

B
a
n

q
u

e
!e

t!
C

a
is

se
!d

'E
p

a
rg

n
e
!d

e
!I
'E

ta
t

Lu
xe

m
b

o
u

rg
O

u
tl

o
o

k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!L

o
n

g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

a
1

'.
!

0
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
3

La
n

d
w

ir
ts

ch
a
ft

li
ch

e
!R

e
n

te
n

b
a
n

k
G

e
rm

a
n

y
O

u
tl

o
o

k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!L

o
n

g
!T

e
rm

!r
a
ti

n
g
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

a
a
'.
!

1
0

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
5

B
e
lg

iu
m

B
e
lg

iu
m

O
u

tl
o

o
k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!S

o
v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
S
o

v
e
re

ig
n
!R

a
ti

n
g
!w

a
s!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

t!
'A

a
3

'.
!

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
6

B
a
n

k
!N

e
d

e
rl

a
n

d
se
!G

e
m

e
e
n

te
n

N
e
th

e
rl

a
n

d
s

Lo
n

g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

a
a
',
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
! c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'P
"1

'.
!

F
in

a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'A

'.

1
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
7

La
n

d
e
sb

a
n

k
!B

e
rl

in
!A

G
G

e
rm

a
n

y

O
u

tl
o

o
k
!o

n
!t

h
e
!L

o
n

g
!T

e
rm

!a
n

d
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
s!

ch
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!f

ro
m
!S

ta
b

le
.!
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!

a
t!

'A
1

'.
!S

h
o

rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'P
"1

'.
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'D

+
'.
!

1
3

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
8

Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e
!B

u
il
d

in
g
!S

o
ci

e
ty
!

U
K

Lo
n

g
!T

e
rm

!r
a
ti

n
g
!u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'B

a
a
1

'!f
ro

m
!'B

a
a
2

'.
!S

h
o

rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'P
"2

'.
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

t!
'C
"'

.!

1
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
9

R
o

y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!G

ro
u

p
!P

lc
U

K
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'B

a
a
2

'!f
ro

m
!'B

a
a
1

',
!r

e
m

o
v
e
d
!f

ro
m
!R

e
v
ie

w
!f

o
r!

P
o

ss
ib

le
!D

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
!a

n
d
!p

la
ce

d
!o

n
!

N
e
g
a
ti

v
e

O
u

tl
o

o
k

S
h

o
rt

T
e
rm

R
a
ti

n
g

a
ff

ir
m

e
d

a
t

'P
2

'

M
o
n
th
ly
!C
re
d
it
!R
a
ti
n
g
!C
h
a
n
g
e
s

M
O
O
D
Y
'S

C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

N
e
g
a
ti

v
e
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
P
"2

.!

1
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
9

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l!
W

e
st

m
in

st
e
r!

B
a
n

k
!P

lc
U

K

Lo
n

g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'B

a
a
1

'!f
ro

m
!'A

3
',
!r

e
m

o
v
e
d
!f

ro
m
!R

e
v
ie

w
!f

o
r!

P
o

ss
ib

le
!D

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
!a

n
d
!p

la
ce

d
!o

n
!

N
e
g
a
ti

v
e
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'P
"2

'.
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'D

+
',
!r

e
m

o
v
e
d
!f

ro
m
!

R
e
v
ie

w
!f

o
r!

P
o

ss
ib

le
!D

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
!a

n
d
!p

la
ce

d
!o

n
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.

1
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
9

T
h

e
!R

o
y
a
l!
B

a
n

k
!o

f!
S
co

tl
a
n

d
!P

lc
U

K

Lo
n

g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'B

a
a
1

'!f
ro

m
!'A

3
',
re

m
o

v
e
d
!f

ro
m
!R

e
v
ie

w
!f

o
r!

P
o

ss
ib

le
!D

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
!a

n
d
!p

la
ce

d
!o

n
!

N
e
g
a
ti

v
e
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'P
"2

'.
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!a

ff
ir

m
e
d
!a

t!
'D

+
',
!r

e
m

o
v
e
d
!f

ro
m
!

R
e
v
ie

w
!f

o
r!

P
o

ss
ib

le
!D

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
!a

n
d
!p

la
ce

d
!o

n
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.

1
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

5
9

U
ls

te
r!

B
a
n

k
!L

td
U

K
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'B

a
a
3

'!f
ro

m
!'B

a
a
2

',
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!r
a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'P
"3

'!f
ro

m
!'P
"

2
'.
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'E

+
'!f

ro
m
!'D

"'
,!
O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.

2
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
4

1
2

6
1

U
n

iC
re

d
it
!B

a
n

k
!A

G
G

e
rm

a
n

y
Lo

n
g
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'B

a
a
1

'!f
ro

m
!'A

3
',
!O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.!
S
h

o
rt
!T

e
rm

!R
a
ti

n
g
!

a
ff

ir
m

e
d
!a

t!
'P
"2

'.
!F

in
a
n

ci
a
l!
S
tr

e
n

g
th
!R

a
ti

n
g
!d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
!t

o
!'D

+
'!f

ro
m
!'C
"'

,!
O

u
tl

o
o

k
!c

h
a
n

g
e
d
!t

o
!S

ta
b

le
!f

ro
m
!N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
.

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 12



D
a
te

U
p
d
a
te
!

N
u
m
b
e
r

In
st
it
u
ti
o
n

C
o
u
n
tr
y

R
a
ti
n
g
!A
ct
io
n

M
o
n
th
ly
!C
re
d
it
!R
a
ti
n
g
!C
h
a
n
g
e
s

S
&
P

C
it

y
!O

f!
Lo

n
d

o
n
!C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
!

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Page 15

Document is Restricted



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Monthly Investment Analysis Review
	9 Non-public minutes of the previous meeting
	10 BlackRock Transition Management
	11 Transition Review
	12 Investments Performance Monitoring to 31 December 2013
	Appendix - FIB 22-5-14

	13 Quarterly Investment Report
	Wellington Management Company, LLP
	Veritas Asset Management LLP

	14 Pensions Infrastructure Platform Update
	15 Private Equity Pipeline and Manager Selection
	InDetail - Crestview Partners III
	InDetail PWP Growth Equity Fund I


